
 

1 
 

                  City of Bay Village 

 
Council Minutes, Committee Session                                                              October 17, 2016 
Conference Room                           7:30 p.m. 
Paul Koomar, President of Council, Presiding 
 
 
Present:           Clark, Henderson, Koomar, Lieske, Mace, Tadych, Vincent, Mayor Ebert 
 
Also Present:  Finance Director Mahoney, Recreation Director Enovitch, Community Services 
Director Selig, Police Chief Spaetzel, Fire Chief Lyons, Operations Manager Landers. 
 
AUDIENCE 

 

The following audience members signed in this evening: Brandon Dimacchia and family, 
Amanda Luckay, Kayla Somerville, Claire Banasiak, Jeff Gallatin, Lydia DeGeorge.                      
 
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 

 

Mr. Pat McNamera 

Northeast Ohio Public Energy Council 

Natural Gas Aggregation 

 

Mr. McNamera of the Northeast Ohio Public Energy Council advised that he grew up on the 
west side of Cleveland, graduated from St. Edward’s High School and Cleveland State 
University.  He spent thirty years in the Cuyahoga County Engineer’s Office in the Construction 
Division.  Mr. McNamera has been a resident of the City of Brunswick since the 1990’s, a two 
term Councilman in Brunswick before being tapped by the Mayor of Brunswick to be the 
Director of Public Services.  During the course of that employment he sat on the board of the 
Northeast Ohio Public Energy Council (NOPEC) for a period three years until being asked to 
join them as a full time staffer.  In January of this year, Mr. McNamera accepted that position. 
 
Mr. McNamera took over for Mr. Charles Ramer and represents Cuyahoga, Columbiana, 
Mahoning, and Lorain Counties.  Mr. Ramer now represents Huron, Seneca and the Sandusky 
area counties for NOPEC. 
 
Mr. McNamera stated that there was a concern expressed by a Bay Village resident and City 
Board member this summer regarding door-to-door solicitation by brokers for natural gas 
service.  Mr. McNamera stated that NOPEC is not allowed by PUCO laws to solicit customers.  
They will come to City Council or Mayors and speak to them on behalf of the community and 
then let the residents decide if they want to join aggregation or not.  The brokers that go door-to-
door or call on the telephone are profit driven companies and their main interest is once the 
aggregation is set in place, scouring some of the residents out and signing them up at really low 
rates for about three months and then it goes up.  When it goes up it is typically the fall or winter 
months after the introductory offer is over. 



Committee Meeting of Council 
October 17, 2016 
 

2 

 
Mrs. Lieske asked if the residents can register complaints with the Better Business Bureau or a 
regulatory agency about the strategy of the for-profit brokers. 
 
Mr. Clark stated that one of the residents has complained that one of the sales people that came 
to his door to sell a plan stated that NOPEC is rated “F” by the Better Business Bureau.  This is 
the impetus that brought Mr. McNamera in this evening to address that complaint. 
 
Mr. McNamera stated that NOPEC’s rating is “F” and it is because NOPEC doesn’t pay the fee 
that is required by the Better Business Bureau. The Better Business Bureau operates on a system 
of fees or dues, and in order to be a member of their club you have to pay the dues.  Because 
NOPEC is in thirteen counties and 207 communities, they consider the dues onerous.  NOPEC is 
the only public entity that they have asked to do this.  They haven’t asked the Cleveland Water 
Department, the Northeast Ohio Regional Sewer District, or Cleveland Metroparks. 
 
NOPEC has been in business for about fifteen years.  Every two years, mandated by the Ohio 
Revised Code, they are supposed to mail out the opt-out letters of which they are out in the 
community right now for gas aggregation.  The current customer base is 336,000 members, each 
receiving a mailing every two years for gas, and 460,000 for electric.  Of the 2.7 million mailers 
sent out in sixteen years’ time, there have been a total of twelve complaints.  The typical 
complaint is a resident moves in from a non-member community and does not understand the 
NOPEC aggregation program.  Nine of the complaints were met in a fashion that was in 
agreement with the resident.  Because NOPEC refuses to pay the dues to the Better Business 
Bureau, the bureau has given them an “F” rating. 
 
Mr. Tadych stated that he originally spoke to the resident who reported the “F” rating by the 
Better Business Bureau.  At that time, Mr. Tadych called Mr. Charles Ramer who represented 
NOPEC, and Mr. Ramer explained to the resident and Mr. Tadych that the “F” rating was due to 
the non-payment of dues by NOPEC to the Better Business Bureau.  Mr. Tadych asked the 
amount of the dues that would have to be paid by NOPEC to the Better Business Bureau.  Mr. 
McNamera said that the dues is about $50,000 annually. 
 
Mr. Clark asked Mr. McNamera how many Bay Village residents are in the NOPEC gas 
aggregation at this point in time, and, how do the rates compare to other providers. 
 
Mr. McNamera stated that when the Bay Village legislation was adopted there were 5,780 
resident households eligible in accordance with the 2010 census.  At that time they mailed out 
4166 letters and 27% of those households were already under contract with another supplier.  
They are not permitted by law to try to steal away those customers, and they do not accept 
customers who are delinquent on their account or in a payment program.  The current customer 
account is 3817.  
 
Mr. McNamera stated that they try to stay on the lowest end of the market.  They do not claim to 
be the lowest, whereas the brokers will make that claim.  Right now they are at the lowest prices 
they have seen for some time.  Mr. McNamera distributed fact sheets and information to Council, 
and will provide several copies to have for residents available at City Hall and the library. 



Committee Meeting of Council 
October 17, 2016 
 

3 

 
Mrs. Lieske asked if any communities require registration for these brokers going door-to-door, 
other than the solicitation permit.  Mr. McNamera stated that NOPEC is working on that now.  
They are developing a program to take over registries for communities to prevent solicitation by 
for-profit agencies.   
 
The next opt-out opportunity for natural gas is coming out in the near future.  Mr. Tadych asked 
how many months the rate is guaranteed.  Initially, it would be a monthly rate.  Mr. McNamera 
stated that there are three different options.  There is a program rate, which is variable, or there 
are two other products.  One is a 24-month fix, and one is a 36-month fix.  Mr. Clark asked how 
residents are placed in one of those three programs.  Mr. McNamera said you can choose 
between them and you can toggle between them without a penalty or waiver fee.  If you get in 
the program price and it much lower than a fixed price because you are hedging against 
something that is going to go up…typically, what I will do is email the Mayor that there is a 
trend that is going up, maybe you ought to get word out to the residents that it is time to lock it 
in. 
 

Mr. McNamera was thanked for his presentation this evening. 
 

ENVIRONMENT, SAFETY AND COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE-Vincent 

 

Mr. Vincent reported that the Regular Meeting of Council agenda this evening includes the third 
reading of Ordinances Nos. 16-65 and 16-66 regarding Medical Marijuana.  Mr. Koomar noted 
that these ordinances have been drafted by the Law Department to be in place prior to the state 
regulations and legislation regarding Medical Marijuana.  When the state regulations are 
completed, Ordinances Nos. 16-65 and 16-66 will be reviewed by the Environment, Safety and 
Community Services Committee and the Committee of the Whole. 
 
Law Director Ebert stated that there is some thought that until regulations by the state are 
determined that Medical Marijuana dispensation may not need any additional permits.  A drug 
store operating within the City may not need additional permits to dispense Medical Marijuana 
since it is not a change of use.  Law Director Ebert stated emphatically that he sees no problem 
whatsoever in having legislation versus a moratorium.  Legislation can be changed or modified 
based on the situation.  There are loopholes in a moratorium.  To be on the safe side, legislation 
is preferred over a moratorium. 
 
Mrs. Lieske stated that she is torn on one side with going ahead with this prohibition because we 
are legislating before we know what we are legislating.  Mrs. Lieske sent an email this morning 
asking how a moratorium puts the City at risk.  As long as the moratorium is in effect, Mrs. 
Lieske understands the risk if it expires prior to being renewed that would be a risk.  Mr. Ebert 
responded that an existing pharmacy may not need any additional permits. 
 
Mr. Tadych asked Mr. Ebert if what he is saying is that Walgreen’s Drug Store may be selling 
Medical Marijuana.  Mr. Ebert responded affirmatively. 
 
Cuyahoga County District Board of Health for Health Services in 2017 



Committee Meeting of Council 
October 17, 2016 
 

4 

 
Mr. Vincent will introduce an ordinance at the Regular Meeting of Council to continue the 
contract with the Cuyahoga County District Board of Health for public health services in the City 
of Bay Village in 2017.  The rate of $4.12 per capita represents a five percent increase over the 
previous year’s fee and is the first increase over the rate that had held steady for three years 
prior. 
 

FINANCE & CLAIMS COMMITTEE – Clark 

 

Supplemental Appropriation Ordinance for Pool Repairs 
 
Recreation Director Enovitch advised that the Service Department found a crack in the pipe that 
is located near a feature of the pool.  The company that built the facility fifteen years ago will 
repair and replace the pipe to insure there is no further leakage.  Mayor Ebert stated that the City 
is filing with the City of Cleveland for a rebate on the charges for the water leak.  Mr. Enovitch 
stated that once the repair is made, the pool will be tested to be sure there are no additional leaks. 
 
Mr. Clark stated that an amendment will be made to the capital side of the appropriation 
ordinance to cover the cost of the repairs for the pipe and the water loss.  There will be an 
additional appropriation adjustment in the near future to address the operational side of the pool.  
Both matters were discussed in the Finance Committee meeting held earlier this evening. 
 
Capital Budget for 2017 
 
Mr. Clark advised that the process for approving a Capital Budget for the City of Bay Village for 
2017 will begin with a Finance Committee meeting to be held Thursday, October 20, 2016 at 
5:30 p.m. 
 
There being no further comments, the Committee meeting adjourned at 7:55 p.m. 
 

 

 
__________________________________   ______________________________ 
Paul Koomar, President of Council          Joan Kemper, Clerk of Council 
 


